Hague
. . #2
Earth Negotiations Bullet
. A R.ep;or.tin.g .Se-rv;ce. fo.r IIEn;/ir.on.m.en.t a.no; D.ev.elz)p.mén': I\I.eg;ot.iat.io;ls

Vol. 6 No. 42 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)  Tuesday, 9 February 1999

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE HAGUE FORUM tdiscﬂmillwtﬂti?hn ar}(cji vilolencg against.wct)ﬁnen; s.exllilal &Imd r(taprosdrlljc-
ive health; the elderly; and women in the agricultural sector. She
MONDAY, 8 FEBRUARY 1999 said delaying action gelays development. g

On Monday, 8 February, delegates at The Hague Forum heard Nafis Sadik, UNFPA Executive Director, highlighted the
opening statements, and a panel discussion by the heads of UNcommitment and work of the Dutch government, NGOs and youth
agencies on follow-up to the ICPD POA in a morning and after- organizations as an example for donor countries. She recalled .
noon Plenary. Ministers and high-level representatives of goveratforts to achieve consensus in Cairo and the progress made since,
ments and international organizations delivered statementis on #aying the Forum would serve to appraise experiences, lessons anc
operational review and assessment of POA implementation at thbstacles. She introduced the background document prepared by
country level in an evening Plenary. The Main Committee met ilJNFPA, noting that it is intended as a Startlnthomt for discussion
the afternoon to consider the substantive theme of Creating an and is not a draft to be renegotiated. Stating that economic progress
Enabling Environment for Further Implementation of the POA. is built on a social foundation, she emﬁha&zed. the need to move

from prescription to action and highlighted the importance of part-
OPENING PLENARY nerships,

Nafis Sadik, UNFPA Executive Director, announced the elec- Eveline Herfkens, Dutch Minister for Development Coopera-
tion of Nicolaas Biegman (Netherlands) as President of the Foruion, expressed disappointment that little had been done to make
Biegman invited participants to observe a moment of silence forfihancial resources available, and called on parliamentarians to
late King Hussein of Jordan. bring this to their governments’ attention. She noted that poor

W.J. Deetman, Mayor of The Hague, welcomed delegates af@productive health results from misguided ﬁr|or|t|es. She high-
expressed hope that they would reach meaningful conc?usionslighted the importance of reproductive health of adolescents, refu-
their deliberations. He highlighted poverty as a global problem gees and other displaced persons, effective multilateral
requiring global solutions and addressed the problem of forced partnerships and the role of NGOs. She noted the absence of the
prostitution, one of the worst forms of modern slavery and a violgorld Bank at the Forum and called for incorporation of the
tion of human rights. Forum’s concerns into World Bank policies.

E. Borst-Eilers, Deputy Prime Minister of the Netherlands, said Baron Vaea, Prime Minister of Tonga, speaking on behalf of
efforts to tackle population problems cannot be confined to birthPacific Island states, hlghllghted the remoteness of the Pacific
control and famﬂg planning. She recalled the lessons from Cairdslands, limited resources, large populations of youth and esca-
that broadened the debate to include reproductive health and réptfilg migration as constraints to POA implementation. He noted
ductive risqhts and the need to eradicate poverty and empower progress in education and improvement of women's status. To
women. She highlighted the need to ensure that the needs of adiigain the momentum of progress, he called for sensitization of
cents are met and called for a more active approach with the ~ development partners to the need for continued partnerships.
involvement of civil society, voluntary organizations and the Forum President Biegman introduced the rules of procedure,
private sector. rovisional agenda and pro?ramme of work, which were adopted

Louise Frechette, UN Deputy Secretary-General, em hasizgu the Plenary. Delegates elected to the Bureau of the Forum Aicha
the importance of empowering women. WKiIe acknowledging thgelardi (Morocco), I. Sall (Senegal), Gerald Sendaula (Uganda),
successes since Cairo, she warned that much more remains tofjgwarul Karim Chowdhury (Bangladesh), Kiyotaka Akasaka
done. The spread of HIV/AIDS, particularly in developing natior%],apan), Datin Paduka Hajah Zaleha Binti Ismail (Malaysia), Elsa
increases the challenge. erquo (Brazil), Rudolph oIImsSGuyana), Alfonso Tuiran

Nana Rawlings, First Lady of Ghana, focused on issues relaﬁmx'co)a P. Boyauev_( ulgaria), Jerzy Eysymontt (Poland),
to African women. She identified a number of obstacles to ictor Golovko {(Ukraine), Rosa-Anna Weiss (Austria), Nicolaas
achieving the POA goals, especially in the area of reproductive Biegman (Netherlands) and Margaret Pollack (US). Anwarul
rights, including gender discrimination, customary practices su%ﬁ“m Chowdhury (Bangladesh) was elected as Chair of the Main
as ritual servitude and genital mutilation, and the feminization of-2mmittee and J. Singh (India) designated as Secretagxand
poverty. She observed that adequate resources and a multi-secg$figio Bureau member. President Biegman said the Bureau would
cooperative approach are needed and that women leaders mus the drafting committee for the final document to emerge from
the Initiative. On legislative reform, she highlifghted the ban on the Forum. _ ) o

enital mutilation in Ghana and other parts of Africa, noting that_ Representatives from the Parliamentarians’, Youth and NGO
egislative changes by themselves do not eradicate undesirablé=orums, held in The Hague in the preceding days, presented report:
practices if they are not accompanied by resources and politicaPf their deliberations.

will.
Elizabeth Aguirre de Calderon Sol, First Lady of El Salvador,PANEL ON FOLLOW-UP TO THE ICPD POA
stressed promotion of women-oriented activities as the key for | Heads of UN organizations participated in a panel on follow-up

improving equality of life for all human beings. She highlighted tf@ the POA. Gro Harlem Brundtland, WHO Director General,
primacy of the family as the first school of life where basic life- Noted that since Cairo, more open debate has occurred on previ-
governing values are established. She outlined development pl@H§ly taboo topics related to sexual and reproductive health. She
programmes and initiatives in E| Salvador addressing: women'sstressed that failure to address reproductive health needs is a matte

vocational opportunities; equality in and access to education; ©f human rights and social justice. She hi%hlilghted increased atten-
tion to the previously neglected issues of STDs, maternal mortality

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Richard Campbell <richcam@hotmail.com>, Angela Churie <churie@|.kth.se>
Kira Schmidt <kiras@iisd.org>, Chris Spence <spencechris@hotmail.com>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd ®idaragirth Editor is L. J
"Kimo" Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by David Fernau <david@virtualstockholm.net>. The Sustaining DonoBudittireare The Netherlands Ministry g
Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID) and the Swiss Agency for Enviforesesrand Landscape. Gengral
Support for the Bulletin during 1999 is provided by the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFIDmtreReeieral Ministry of Environmer
(BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the EuropeamiBo(DG-XI), the Ministries
of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministrgighffairs and Ministry of Environment
of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facilityd(tBERiaistry for the
Environment in Iceland. Specific support for coverage of The Hague Forum has been provided by UNBRAefitnean be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and
at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. 1ISD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avéifiuelé@stVinnipeg, Manitoba R3B
0Y4, Canada. The opinions expressed irBath Negotiations Bulletiare those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of ISD and other funders. Excerpt:
from theEarth Negotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to useghiis materi
commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions Biitledin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW
server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image was taken above The Hague (¢)1999 The Living Earth, Inmdpeigrtiicom. For information on tEarth
Negotiations Bulletinsend e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.

=

—




Earth Negotiations Bulletin
Tuesday, 9 February 1999 T ... Vol. 6 No. 42 Page 2

and morbidity and reproductive tract cancers, and pioneering clearly articulating training policy, and imﬁrovin Slﬁjgort mecha-
efforts by NGOs in these areas. She noted that aid fatigue has winsis addressing women and poverty. The YOUTH FORUM
ened since Cairo and global resources for public health interveremphasized access to education and employment, reproductive ant
tions have not kept up with increasing demand. Looking ahead, stveual health, and private sector participation. LESOTHO called
highlighted maternal health and adolescent sexual and reproducaiivgovernments to create or strengthen structures that coordinate
health as issues demanding particular attention. She expressedollaboration with civil societies and to facilitate early inclusion of
WHO'’s commitment to putting health in the center of the develofie private sector in POA implementation.
ment agenda. . ) JAMAICA said a clear vision of the report's recommended
Carol Bellamy, UNICEF Executive Director, underscored thastructures and paradigms is essential to avoid the risk of misguiding
adolescents should enjoy the rights of access to education, headitwernments. BRAZIL said the report should include more facts
and other services, and said parents and teachers must be actiedout economic and social transformation. H|ghl|fqht|ng details of
adolescents’ education. She stressed the need for investment ithe POA and the importance of the human rights framework, the
girls’ education, expanded approaches to safe motherhood andlUCN, supported by others, stressed their concern that the back-
women'’s reproductive health, and political will. She highlighted _round/faper does not reflect the essence of the POA. SOUTH
the |mPortance and effectiveness of peer programmes in preve ﬁ?lc recognized debt financing and unsustainable resource use
HIV/AIDS among adolescents. as fundamental problems undermining governments’ ability to
Peter Piot, UNAIDS Executive Director, stated that the AIDSaddress poverty. Supported by NGOs and the YOUTH FORUM,
epidemic has worsened since Cairo, with youth experiencing thehe called for the cancellation of debt, especially for the poorest
brunt of it, particularly girls. He said AIDS is reversing hard-woncountries. NGOs stressed the need for clear and adequate rules on
gains in development. He highlighted that some countries havecapital flows and a sound macroeconomic environment as precon-

succeeded in reversing the trend with vigorous education ditions to POA imﬁlementa_tion. PALAU said elements that hamper
campaigns and emphasized the need for political commitment, implementation should be identified and eliminated. _
greater investment and technological breakthroughs. SUDAN and the HOLY SEE called for greater emphasis on

Nafis Sadik, UNFPA Executive Director, said the global refugees and displaced people in the report. BURUNDI said sanc-
conferences of the 1990s demonstrate that social investment istions and embargoes affect the most vulnerable members of society
fundamental to progress. She highlighted the need for a new dexagtnegatively impact primary health and education services and,
opment paradigm where macro-economic policies look at micraaith LIBERIA, said countries emerging from conflicts or natural
level needs and stressed the need to incorporate communicatigtisasters should be given special assistance. Noting that migration
with economic leaders into advocacy for population issues. Shes linked to other issues related to trade, environment and socio-
called for: a more integrated approach to reproductive health; economic development, CANADA suggested inclusion of these as
involvement and education of men; improved data and knowledge]! as factors leading to involuntary migration in the report.

and maximization of resources to the social sector. The HOLY SEE said the background report inadequately
addresses ageing and noted that communities and families should
MAIN COMMITTEE be prepared to assume responsibility for older people. He called for

The Main Committee considered the first thematic issue,  resources to support awareness and sensitization for family- and
“Creating an enabling environment for further implementation ocommunity-based programmes to care for the elderly. JAPAN and
the ICPD POA.” Chair Chowdhury stressed that the POA wouldAUSTRIA hghhghted implications of rapid population ageing.
not be re-negotiated. Joseph Chamie, Director of the PopulatioThe NETHERLANDS said data is important for financial flows
Division of UN DESA, introduced the background paper’s chaptand called for information on the impacts of financial resources.
on the thematic issue, highlighting historical deliberations on popWDAN emphasized the need for social indicators that cover a
lation and develo%r?lgnt Issues and atress(ijng advar&c?]s in heda]!tldlversny of socio-cultural norms.
improvements and life expectancy. He underscored the need fo
consensus on the meaning of the terms ‘population’ and ‘devel(%‘PERAT'ONA'— REVIEW AND ASSESSMENT OF POA
ment,’” the importance of wide participation and comprehensive IMPLEMENTATION
deliberations, the importance of using statistics and a sound knowlMinisters and high-level representatives of governments, inter-
edge base, and economic and political difficulties facing many national organizations and NGOs delivered statements on the oper-
countries. ational review and assessment at the country level of POA

Ensuing discussion hi%hlighted institutional capacity-buildingmplementation in an evening Plenary. Recurring themes included
enhancement of partnerships, data needs and indicators for mdhee need for a multi-sectoral approach to population issues, finan-
toring progress, strategies to increase awareness, and impacts@aél constraints that have hampered developing country capacity to
structural adjustment programmes (SAPs) on the creation of implement the POA, and the need for donor countries and organi-
enabling environments for population programmes. zations to increase their level of support.

Noting that cultural and traditional norms may hinder E)rogress Editor’s Note: Due to space constraints, the ENB will not
on adolescent and reproductive health issues, IRAN highlightedpghavide coverage of specific statements
use of pilot studies and negotiations among religious leaders,
pO|IC%/ makers and academia as well as parental consultations tfN THE CORRIDORS
reach an understanding on methods, strategies and approaches. As participants begn to settle into substantive discussions, the
EGYPT stressed community mobilization, creation of partner- early Forum buzz swayed towards the inadequacy of financial
ships, prioritization of high-risk groups and consideration of poptesources committed by donors for implementation of the ICPD
lation in the wider context of global problems. GHANA called forecommendations. Some participants suggested that this may
simple booklets to help integrate population into planning and become an issue of some controversy during the Forum. Both in
resource mobilization for censuses. The UK stressed public hedtihmal statements and in the corridors, particular donors have come
systems and the need for partnerships focusing on outcomes thatder criticism for failing to meet their funding commitments.
brmP direct benefits to the poor. The US advocated maintainingOthers noted that high-level political attendance is intended to

quality of life as the priority, and emphasized coordination with signal a significant degree of political will to address the concerns.
flngnﬁers ancic businessmen in building CO%lItIOI%S alnd networks

and the use of communication systems and technologies.

ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA recommended addressing the THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

impacts of the Y2K phenomena. BUREAU MEETING: The Bureau will meet at 8:00 am in the

_ UGANDA and ZIMBABWE said SAPs have had negative  Vermeer Room to identify points from Main Committee discus-
impacts on national economies, undermined institutional capac#ions that could be included in the final Forum report.

and hindered implementation of population programmes. PLENARY: Plenary will convene at 11:30 am in the Prins
CANADA proposed involving the IMF in design and planning ofwjjlem-Alexander Hall. US First Lady Hillary Rodham Clinton

new programmes and in the population and development dialogii@.deliver a keynote speech, followed by statements on opera-
SWEDEN and the NETHERLANDS said CapaCity needs shoul al review an)zj assegsmen’t_ y P

identified from curricula in schools and other training institutions . ; i : i

and cautioned that sector-wide approaches in the health sector gma erll\ngghMRlvcl)grhr%%io'Bgeam%g cga%gdmétrt?ﬁevgﬂg&g\é%cg ![ﬂeme
reduce the focus on reproductive heBANGLADESH stressed «gander Equality, Equity and Empowerment of Women.”
decentralization of reproductive health programmes. NIGERIA ' ’
supported strengthening and consolidating viable institutions,



